
City Council of Hyattsville, Maryland

Watch Council Meetings Live View Past Council Meetings

AGENDA
City Council Regular Meeting

Monday, March 20, 2017
8:00 PM

Council Chambers
Hyattsville Municipal Building
4310 Gallatin Street, 3rd Floor

Hyattsville, MD 20781
(301) 985-5000  www.hyattsville.org

CITY COUNCIL 
Mayor Candace B. Hollingsworth

Edouard Haba, Council President, Ward 4
Bart Lawrence, Council Vice President, Ward 1

Kevin Ward, Ward 1
Robert S. Croslin, Ward 2
Shani N. Warner, Ward 2

Patrick A. Paschall, Ward 3
Thomas Wright, Ward 3
Paula J. Perry, Ward 4

Ruth Ann Frazier, Ward 5
Joseph Solomon, Ward 5

ADMINISTRATION
Tracey E. Nicholson, City Administrator

Laura Reams, City Clerk, 301-985-5009, lreams@hyattsville.org

1

http://hyattsville-md.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?camera_id=2
http://www.hyattsville.org/councilagendas
http://www.hyattsville.org
mailto:chollingsworth@hyattsville.org
mailto:ehaba@hyattsville.org
mailto:blawrence@hyattsville.org
mailto:kward@hyattsville.org
mailto:rcroslin@hyattsville.org
mailto:swarner@hyattsville.org
mailto:ppaschall@hyattsville.org
mailto:twright@hyattsville.org
mailto:pjperry@hyattsville.org
mailto:rafrazier@hyattsville.org
mailto:jsolomon@hyattsville.org
mailto:lreams@hyattsville.org


WELCOME TO THE CITY OF HYATTSVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING!  Your participation at this
public meeting is valued and appreciated.  

Twitter Facebook Instagram Vimeo

Agenda/Packet: The Agenda/Packet is available for review at the Hyattsville Municipal Building and
online at www.hyattsville.org prior the scheduled meeting (generally available no later than the
Friday prior to the scheduled Monday meeting).  Please note, times given for agenda items are
estimates only.  Matters other than those indicated on the agenda may also be considered at Council
discretion. 

Americans with Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the ADA, if you need special assistance to
participate in this meeting or other services in conjunction with this meeting, please contact the City
Clerk’s Offi ce at (301) 985-5009.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  

Audible Devices:  Please ensure all audible devices are turned off or otherwise not audible when the
City Council is in session.  Thank you.

Consent Agenda:  Items listed on the Consent agenda are considered to be routine in nature, and are
normally approved by one motion.  Please note that most items on the Consent agenda have been
discussed at a previous meeting.  If a Councilmember wishes to comment on a particular item, that
item shall be removed from the Consent agenda to “action” to allow for additional discussion.

Public Input:  If you wish to address the Council during the Public Comment period, please submit an
Audience Participation Form to the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  Matters
identified during Public Comment that are not on that meeting’s agenda will be referred to staff for
follow-up or considered on a future agenda.  Issues that require a response will be addressed
publically at the next regular Council meeting.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no
more than two (2) minutes per speaker.  Written comments or supporting documents may be turned
in to the City Clerk for distribution to the Mayor and Council. 

Ways to Watch the Meetings Live:  City Council meetings are broadcast live on cable television
channel 71 (Comcast) and channel 12 (Verizon).  You may also view meetings live online at
hyattsville-md.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?camera_id=2

Replay Schedule:  The meetings will be re-broadcast on cable television, channel 71 (Comcast) and
channel 12 daily at 7:00 a.m., 1 p.m., and 8 p.m.  Meetings are also able for replay online at
www.hyattsville.org/councilagendas.

City Information: Sign up to receive text and email notifications about Hyattsville events,
government, police and programs at www.hyattsville.org/list.aspx

Inclement Weather: In the event of inclement weather, please call 301-985-5000 to confirm the
status of the Council meeting. 

2

https://twitter.com/hyattsvillemd
https://www.facebook.com/cityofhyattsville/?ref=aymt_homepage_panel
https://www.instagram.com/cityofhyattsville/?hl=en
https://vimeo.com/user13640157
http://www.hyattsville.org/
http://hyattsville-md.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?camera_id=2
http://www.hyattsville.org/councilagendas
http://www.hyattsville.org/list.aspx


1. Call to Order and Council Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

3. Moment of Silence in Honor of Phil Houle

4. Approval of Agenda

6. Public Comment (8:10 p.m. – 8:20 p.m.) Limit 2 minutes per speaker

7. Presentations (8:20 p.m. - 8:25 p.m.)
7.a.) FY-2015 Audit Update
Motion #: Presentation Only
Sponsor(s): At the Request of the City Administrator 

8. Consent Items (8:25 p.m. - 8:30 p.m.)
8.a.) Appointment to the Health, Wellness and Recreation Advisory Committee
I move that the Mayor and Council appoint Don Burger (Ward 1) to the Health, Wellness and
Recreation Advisory Committee for a term of 2 years to expire on March 20, 2019.
Motion #: 149-03-FY17
Sponsor(s): Ward 

Don Burger_HWRAC Application_redacted.pdf

8.b.) Appointment to the Hyattsville Environment Committee
I move that the Mayor and Council appoint Megan Haidet (Ward 3) to the Hyattsville
Environment Committee for a term of 2 years to expire on March 20, 2019.
Motion #: 150-03-FY17
Sponsor(s): Perry 

Megan Haidet_HEC Application_redacted.pdf

8.c.) Appointment to the Ethics Commission Committee
I move that the Mayor, with Council approval, appoint Franchesca Thomas (Ward 1) to the
Ethics Commission Committee for a term of 3 years to expire on March 20, 2020. 
Motion #: 151-03-FY17
Sponsor(s): Hollingsworth, Lawrence, Perry 

Franchesca Thomas_Ethics Application_redacted.pdf

8.d.) Schedule Public Hearing, April 12, 2017
I move that the Mayor and Council schedule a Public Hearing on Wednesday, April 12, 2017 at
7:30 PM in order to hear public comment on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2018 Budget.  
Motion #: 152-03-FY17
Sponsor(s): At the Request of the City Administrator 

FY18_Budget_Meeting_Schedule_Revised_031417.pdf

8.e.) Council Discretionary  Funds to Sponsor Spring 2017 Hy-Swap

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/58537/Don_Burger_HWRAC_Application_redacted.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/58540/Megan_Haidet_HEC_Application_redacted.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/58544/Franchesca_Thomas_Ethics_Application_redacted.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/58948/FY18_Budget_Meeting_Schedule_Revised_031417.pdf


I move that the Mayor and Council authorize the expenditure of $500 ($250 each from Ward 2
and 3) in Council Discretionary Funds for the City of Hyattsville to sponsor the Spring 2017
HY-Swap event scheduled to take place in the City Building on April 8, 2017.
Motion #: 153-03-FY17
Sponsor(s): Paschall, Wright, Warner, Croslin, Frazier 

HY-Swap Info Sheet 20170131.docx

9. Action Items (8:30 p.m. - 8:50 p.m.)
9.a.) Hyattsville Senior Nutrition Program Partnership (10 minutes)
I move that the Mayor and Council authorize the City Administrator to negotiate and execute
Memorandums of Understandings with College Park Meals on Wheels, Prince George's
County Department of Family Services, and Prince George's Public Schools for the purposes
of implementing a Senior Nutrition Program in the City. I further move that the Mayor and
Council authorize FY18 funding for the program in an amount not to exceed $25,000. 
Motion #: 154-03-FY17
Sponsor(s): Solomon 

Staff_Comments_on_Senior_Nutrition_Program_03-06-17.docx

9.b.) Hyattsville Ambassador Program (10 minutes)
I move that the Mayor and Council appoint Mary Ann Dillon, Ann Barrett and Erica Riggio to
serve as Hyattsville Ambassadors for a term of two (2) years to expire on May 1, 2019.
Motion #: 155-03-FY17
Sponsor(s): At the Request of the City Administrator  

Memo - Ambassador Program Appointments.docx

Hyattsville Ambassador Program Presentation FINAL.pdf

Ambassador Program - Candidate Packet.pdf

10. Discussion Items (8:50 p.m. - 9:35 p.m.)
10.a.) Revisions to Ordinances for Temporary Structures & Enclosures:  § 65-8, § 65-23.1 and §
65-27 (15 minutes)
Motion #: Discussion Only
Sponsor(s): At the Request of the City Administrator 

Memo - Temporary Unenclosed Storage Ordinances.docx

Section 65-8 Temporary Storage Unit January 5 2017 (1).docx

65-23.1 Revised 3.16.17.docx

Code Committee Minutesr - Jan17_Approved.doc

10.b.) Hyattsville Ordinance 2017-02, An Ordinance whereby the City Council establishes
itself as a Sanctuary City and establishes that the City of Hyattsville does not intervene in
federal immigration matters.  (30 minutes)
Motion #: Discussion Only

4

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/54932/HY-Swap_Info_Sheet_20170131.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/58748/Staff_Comments_on_Senior_Nutrition_Program_03-06-17.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/57430/Memo_-_Ambassador_Program_Appointments.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/59276/Hyattsville_Ambassador_Program_Presentation_FINAL.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/57432/Ambassador_Program_-_Candidate_Packet.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/59259/Memo_-_Temporary_Unenclosed_Storage_Ordinances.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/59260/Section_65-8_Temporary_Storage_Unit_January_5_2017__1_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/59261/65-23.1_Revised_3.16.17.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/59262/Code_Committee_Minutesr_-_Jan17_Approved.pdf


Sponsor(s): Paschall, Hollingsworth, Wright, Warner, Ward, Solomon, Lawrence, Haba, Croslin

Non-intervention Ordinance to Mayor and Council 3.15.17 DRAFT.pdf

11. Council Dialogue (9:35 p.m. - 9:45 p.m.)

12. Community Notices and Meetings
12.a.) City Calendar: March 21 - April 3, 2017 
Motion #: N/A
Sponsor(s): At the Request of the City Administrator 

Main City Calendar_Mar 21-April 3 2017.pdf

13. Motion to Adjourn

5

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/58998/Non-intervention_Ordinance_to_Mayor_and_Council_3.15.17_DRAFT.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/59212/Main_City_Calendar_Mar_21-April_3_2017.pdf


Hyattsville City Council Agenda Item Report

Meeting Date: March 20, 2017
Submitted by: Ron Brooks
Submitting Department: Finance 
Item Type: Audit
Agenda Section: Presentations (8:20 p.m. - 8:25 p.m.)

SUBJECT
FY-2015 Audit Update

Motion #
Presentation Only

Recommendation:

Sponsor(s):
At the Request of the City Administrator

ATTACHMENTS

Summary Background:
We are in the final stage of the "Partner Review" where the auditors review each section of the audit for
compliance. As previously stated, this is also the time for auditors to make or suggest changes to any of the
information in the document. Historically, this stage has resulted in minor text changes, but no major changes in the
financial data. Currently they are considering restating information in the Financial Highlights and Government
Activities sections of the audit. We hope to finalize this stage and get closeout documents within weeks.  We will
then pick up the pace on the FY-2016 audit.  

Next Steps:
Complete the "Partner Review" stage, finalize the draft, get closeout documents and final reports to Council. 

Fiscal Impact:
Late audit filings can result in the loss of various State Grants and loss of revenues from State Highway Funds.

City Administrator Comments:
See summary background above.

Community Engagement:
N/A

Strategic Goals:
Goal 1 - Ensure Transparent & Accessible Governance.

Legal Review Required?
N/A

6



Hyattsville City Council Agenda Item Report

Meeting Date: March 20, 2017
Submitted by: Laura Reams
Submitting Department: City Clerk 
Item Type: Appointment
Agenda Section: Consent Items (8:25 p.m. - 8:30 p.m.)

SUBJECT
Appointment to the Health, Wellness and Recreation Advisory Committee

Motion #
149-03-FY17

Recommendation:
I move that the Mayor and Council appoint Don Burger (Ward 1) to the Health, Wellness and Recreation Advisory
Committee for a term of 2 years to expire on March 20, 2019.

Sponsor(s):
Ward

ATTACHMENTS
Don Burger_HWRAC Application_redacted.pdf

Summary Background:
Please see attached application.

Next Steps:
Staff liaisons for HWRAC Committee will reach out to the new appointee to invite them to attend the next meeting. 

Fiscal Impact:
N/A

City Administrator Comments:
Recommend Support

Community Engagement:
Agendas for the HWRAC Meetings are posted on the City's website. Meetings are open to the public and all are
encouraged to attend. 

Strategic Goals:
Goal 1 - Ensure Transparent & Accessible Governance
Action 1.1 - Provide information and opportunities for resident participation in civic endeavors. 

Legal Review Required?
N/A

7

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/58537/Don_Burger_HWRAC_Application_redacted.pdf


Submit Date: Mar 07, 2017
Status: submitted

First Name Last Name

Email Address

Street Address Suite or Apt

City State Postal Code

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

Referred By:

City of Hyattsville

Board, Committee and Commission Application

Profile

To find your City Ward, click on this link! http://www.hyattsville.org/538/Residency-Verification-
Page 

Ward

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Health, Wellness and Recreation Advisory Committee

Biographical Statement

I have been a resident of Hyattsville for about 2 1/2 years and have been a life-long fitness enthusiast who
understands the benefits of living a healthy lifestyle. As an employee of the U.S. Department of
Transportation, I have considerable experience in understanding the government and regulatory process.
Serving on the committee would also provide me with an opportunity to give back to my local community.

Don Burger

Ward 1

Lauren Comeau

Don Burger Page 1 of 1

8

http://www.hyattsville.org/538/Residency-Verification-Page


Hyattsville City Council Agenda Item Report

Meeting Date: March 20, 2017
Submitted by: Laura Reams
Submitting Department: City Clerk 
Item Type: Appointment
Agenda Section: Consent Items (8:25 p.m. - 8:30 p.m.)

SUBJECT
Appointment to the Hyattsville Environment Committee

Motion #
150-03-FY17

Recommendation:
I move that the Mayor and Council appoint Megan Haidet (Ward 3) to the Hyattsville Environment Committee for a
term of 2 years to expire on March 20, 2019.

Sponsor(s):
Perry

ATTACHMENTS
Megan Haidet_HEC Application_redacted.pdf

Summary Background:
Please see attached application.

Next Steps:
Staff liaisons for HEC Committee will reach out to the new appointees to invite them to attend the next meeting. 

Fiscal Impact:
N/A

City Administrator Comments:
Recommend Support

Community Engagement:
Agendas for the HEC Meetings are posted on the City's website. Meetings are open to the public and all are
encouraged to attend. 

Strategic Goals:
Goal 1 - Ensure Transparent and Accessible Governance
Action 1.1 - Provide Information and Opportunities for Resident Participation in Civic Endeavors.

Legal Review Required?
N/A

9

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/58540/Megan_Haidet_HEC_Application_redacted.pdf


Submit Date: Jan 23, 2017
Status: submitted

First Name Last Name

Email Address

Street Address Suite or Apt

City State Postal Code

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

Referred By:

City of Hyattsville

Board, Committee and Commission Application

Profile

To find your City Ward, click on this link! http://www.hyattsville.org/538/Residency-Verification-
Page 

Ward

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Hyattsville Environment Committee

Megan Haidet

Ward 1

Megan Haidet Page 1 of 2

10

http://www.hyattsville.org/538/Residency-Verification-Page


Biographical Statement

I have a strong interest in the environmental wellbeing of my community. In college and graduate school I
majored in environmental science and environmental policy so I am well-versed in the foundational
science and processes that contribute to clean air, water and sustainable ecosystems. I have worked for
the US Fish and Wildlife Service, Bureau of Land Management and presently the National Institute of
Food and Agriculture. I have also worked on behalf of municipalities interested in preserving open space
and farmland while at The Land Conservancy of New Jersey. In that role, I participated in numerous
public meetings and became familiar with municipal governing. As a relatively new resident of Hyattsville,
I am looking forward to becoming more involved in our town. In my free time, I like to cook, quilt and go
for bike rides.

Megan Haidet Page 2 of 2

11



Hyattsville City Council Agenda Item Report

Meeting Date: March 20, 2017
Submitted by: Laura Reams
Submitting Department: City Clerk 
Item Type: Appointment
Agenda Section: Consent Items (8:25 p.m. - 8:30 p.m.)

SUBJECT
Appointment to the Ethics Commission Committee

Motion #
151-03-FY17

Recommendation:
I move that the Mayor, with Council approval, appoint Franchesca Thomas (Ward 1) to the Ethics Commission
Committee for a term of 3 years to expire on March 20, 2020. 

Sponsor(s):
Hollingsworth, Lawrence, Perry

ATTACHMENTS
Franchesca Thomas_Ethics Application_redacted.pdf

Summary Background:
Please see attached appointment application. 

Next Steps:
N/A

Fiscal Impact:
N/A

City Administrator Comments:
Recommend Support

Community Engagement:
Agendas for the Ethics Commission Committee Meetings are posted on the City's website. Meetings are open to the
public and all are encouraged to attend. 

Strategic Goals:
Goal 1 - Ensure Transparent and Accessible Governance
Action 1.1 - Provide Information and Opportunities for Resident Participation in Civic Endeavors.

Legal Review Required?
N/A

12

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/58544/Franchesca_Thomas_Ethics_Application_redacted.pdf


Submit Date: Jan 24, 2017
Status: submitted

First Name Last Name

Email Address

Street Address Suite or Apt

City State Postal Code

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

Referred By:

City of Hyattsville

Board, Committee and Commission Application

Profile

To find your City Ward, click on this link! http://www.hyattsville.org/538/Residency-Verification-
Page 

Ward

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Ethics Commission, Planning Committee

Franchesca Thomas

Ward 1

Franchesca Thomas Page 1 of 2

13

http://www.hyattsville.org/538/Residency-Verification-Page


Biographical Statement

My name is Frankie Thomas. My current occupation is a Project Analyst for a public company within the
financial services industry. Hyattsville is such an amazing city with so much potential. As a small business
owner as well, I understand that we continually need progressions in our neighborhoods. As residents, we
should preserve the historic past and actively pursue new ideas to ensure a brighter future for us all. I am
highly interested in being appointed to the Ethics Commission and Planning Committee to ensure the City
of Hyattsville is meeting the State of Maryland guidelines with ethics forms and properly vetting proposed
development site plans, as well as legislative items related to planning and/or zoning to provide the Mayor
and Council recommendations. Also, I believe that I can help bring creative, pragmatic and collaborative
solutions for the city of Hyattsville.

Franchesca Thomas Page 2 of 2

14



Hyattsville City Council Agenda Item Report

Meeting Date: March 20, 2017
Submitted by: Laura Reams
Submitting Department: City Clerk 
Item Type: Legislative
Agenda Section: Consent Items (8:25 p.m. - 8:30 p.m.)

SUBJECT
Schedule Public Hearing, April 12, 2017

Motion #
152-03-FY17

Recommendation:
I move that the Mayor and Council schedule a Public Hearing on Wednesday, April 12, 2017 at 7:30 PM in order to
hear public comment on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2018 Budget.  

Sponsor(s):
At the Request of the City Administrator

ATTACHMENTS
FY18_Budget_Meeting_Schedule_Revised_031417.pdf

Summary Background:
The hearing is an opportunity to hear input from residents and other stakeholders on the proposed FY-18 budget.
The budget was presented to the Mayor and Council on March 15, 2017. A copy of the Budget Meeting Schedule is
attached to this item. 

Next Steps:
N/A

Fiscal Impact:
N/A

City Administrator Comments:
Recommend Approval.

Community Engagement:
The public hearing provides an opportunity for the community to get information, ask questions and give public
comments related to this issue.  

Strategic Goals:
Goal 1 - Ensure Transparent and Accessible Governance. 

Legal Review Required?
N/A

15

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/58948/FY18_Budget_Meeting_Schedule_Revised_031417.pdf



